
For any apologies or requests for further information, or to give notice of a question to be 
asked by a member of the public  
Contact:  Cherry Foreman  
Tel: 01270 529736 or 01270 529644 
E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Shared Services Joint Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Monday, 26th October, 2009 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: East Committee Room - Municipal Buildings, Earle Steet, 
Crewe, CW1 2BJ 

 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 To note attendances, substitutes, and any apologies for absence. 

 
2. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 Members of the public are entitled to address the Joint Committee on reports contained within 

the agenda.  One person can speak in support of each item, and one against, with a limit of 
three minutes each.  It would be helpful if any person wishing to speak would give prior notice 
to the Democratic Services Officer named below. 
 

3. Minutes of Previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2009. 

 
4. (A) Transition Shared Services - Update, and, (2) ICT Business Plan Clarification  

(Pages 5 - 14) 
 
 To consider the joint report of the Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets (Cheshire East 

Council) and The Director of Resources (Cheshire West and Chester Council) on: 

• A – The Disaggregation of Transitional Shared Services 

• B – ICT Business Plan Update 

 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Future Meeting Dates   
 
 To note the dates of the meetings for the remainder of the municipal year. 

• Thursday 26 November 2009 at 1.30 pm 

• Wednesday 16 December 2009 at 1.30 pm 

• Monday 25 January 2010 at 2.00 pm 

• Friday 12 March 2010 at 10.00 am 
Additional meetings will be arranged as and when required. 
 

6. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 
 The reports relating to the remaining items on the agenda have been withheld from public 

circulation and deposit pursuant to Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government Act 1972 on 
the grounds that the matters may be determined with the press and public excluded.  
  
The Committee may decide that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraphs 2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and 
public interest would not be served in publishing the information. 
 
 
PART 2 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITHOUT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
PRESENT 
 

 
 

7. Shared Services Staff Reductions  (Pages 15 - 20) 
 
 To consider the joint report of the Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets (Cheshire East 

Council) and the Director of Resources (Cheshire West and Chester Council). 

 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Shared Services Joint Committee 

held on Wednesday, 30th September, 2009 at Fred Flint Room, Westfields, 
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ 

 
PRESENT 

 
Councillor P Mason (Chairman) 
Councillor Ford (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors D Brown, F Keegan and Jones. 
 
Also present: 
Councillor S Wilkinson. 
 
Officers in attendance: 
Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets (Cheshire East Council) 
Borough Solicitor (Cheshire East Council) 
Director of Resources (Cheshire West and Chester Council) 

 
23 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R Short. 
 

24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

25 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION  

 
Councillor S Wilkinson asked for consideration to be given to the current 
governance arrangements for shared services, in order to increase the 
opportunity for involvement by Members who are not on the Joint Committee in 
matters of special interest, or in their capacity as users, of the Shared Services.  
It was agreed that this would be considered further by the Shared Services Joint 
Officer Board and a report submitted to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 

26 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2009 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

27 BUSINESS PLANS AND SERVICE DELIVERY STATEMENTS  

 
Consideration was given to the detailed Business Plans and Service Delivery 
statements for those services not considered by the Committee at its meeting on 
13 July 2009.  Officers from both Council’s had prepared the following business 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



plans and service delivery statements, taking into account the complexities of the 
services, and these had been reviewed and agreed by the Joint Officer Board.    
 

1. Archaeology Planning Advisory Service 
2. Domestic Abuse Partnership 
3. Drug and Alcohol Action Team 
4. Farms Estate 
5. Community Equipment Service (Choicequip) 
6. Highways Term Contract Management 
7. ICT 
8. International Unit 
9. Visual Impairment Service 

 
Members received clarification in response to a number of specific questions in 
respect of the above listed services.  With regard to the ICT Shared Service 
Members asked for further information in respect of certain aspects of the 
Business Plan and it was, therefore, agreed that it be noted as a transitional 
report, and that it be considered further by the Committee after the Visioning Day 
which was in the process of being arranged.    
 
With reference to Outdoor Education, Minerals and Waste Planning, and the 
Learning Disabilities Pooled Fund, the Joint Committee was asked to consider 
not applying this form of governance to service delivery in Cheshire East and 
Cheshire West and Chester.  The report detailed the reasons for this and 
proposed that for these services a transition plan would be prepared by the 
Service, for approval by the Joint Officer Board, in order to monitor the delivery of 
a successful transition to service delivery by each individual Council.  
 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Minerals and Waste Planning Services be not formally shared, 
but that the Councils will work together to support each other via day to 
day collaboration and/or pieces of work commissioned and reimbursed via 
a service level agreement as applicable. 

 
2. That the Outdoor Education Service be not shared, but the facilities in 

question be subject to a review of the treatment of the former County 
assets, by the Property Transfer and Balance Sheet Group. 

 
3. That the Learning Disabilities Pooled Fund be not governed under this 

Shared Services Joint Committee but instead under existing agreements 
with health partners. 

 
4. That the ICT Business Plan and Service Delivery Statement be noted as a 

transitional statement and that further consideration be given to this 
Service at a future meting of the Committee. 

  
5. That the approval by the Joint Officer Board of the Shared Services 

Business Plans and Service Delivery Statements for the remaining 
services be noted. 

 
6. That Members note the intention to hold a visioning day for the Shared 

Services for which they were requested to supply any specific 
observations or requests regarding its structure and content. 

Page 2



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.05 am 

 
Councillor P Mason (Chairman) 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
CHESHIRE WEST & CHESTER COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: SHARED SERVICES JOINT COMMITTEE 
______________________________________________________________
______ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
26 October 2009 

Report of: Cheshire East – Borough Treasurer & Head Of Assets 
Cheshire West & Chester – Director of Resources 

Subject/Title: Shared Services Report regarding: 

• Disaggregation of transitional shared services 

• Business plan clarification 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on transition activity and indicates 

which services, where the sharing arrangements were scheduled to 
end in September 2009, have successfully completed the 
disaggregation. 

 
1.2 This report also provides the Shared Services Joint Committee with 

further details relating to the Business Plans previously presented to 
the Joint Committee held on 30th September. 

 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That members confirm the closure of shared service arrangements for 

those services disaggregating in September 2009 where the transition 
has now been completed and approved by Joint Officer Board, i.e. the 
Inclusion & Education and Early Years Reform Programme services.  
Details of the transition work are provided in sections 7 and 12. 

 
2.2 That members confirm the extension of the Schools Admission shared 

service until 31st October 2009. Details of the transition work are 
provided in sections 7 and 12. 

 
2.3 That members note the points of clarification provided relating to the 

questions about the business plans raised at the meeting of the Joint 
Committee on 30th September 2009.  Details of these clarifications are 
provided in section 13.  Further amendments to business plans may be 
required following the outcome of the visioning day scheduled for 
November 2009.   

 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 5



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 The shared governance and financial arrangements should be ceased 

for  those service that have now been disaggregated as both Councils 
have now taken over the responsibilities associated with those 
services. 

 
3.2 The extension of the Schools Admission shared service until 31st 

October 2009 is required to ensure continuity of this service for both 
Councils while activity to disaggregate this service is completed. 

 
3.3 Points of clarification have been included in this report in order to 

respond to questions previously raised by members. 
 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 This report relates to shared services that operate across both 

Cheshire East and Cheshire West & Chester so all wards are affected 
in both Councils. 

 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1  Not applicable. 
 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 None. 
 
 
7.0 Financial Implications for Transition Costs 
 
7.1 The net costs, not including grant income, associated with the shared 

services that have now been disaggregated have been calculated as: 
  

• Inclusion & Education: £5,164,661; 

• Early Years Reform: £53,199. 
 
7.2 Both of these services have delivered within the agreed total budget for 

the service.  Appropriate recharges between the Councils are now 
been progressed. 

 
7.3 Both Councils are now monitoring budgets and costs associated with 

the Inclusion & Education and Early Years Reform services separately, 
with no further recharges and cost sharing arrangements required. 

 

Page 6



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

7.4 For the Schools Admission service, additional shared cost may be 
incurred for the transition period.  The additional 2 months may mean 
that the shared service incurs costs of up to £70,000 to be shared 
between both Councils as set out in the business plan for the service. 

 
 
8.0 Financial Implications 2009/10 and beyond 
 
8.1 Each Council is now separately responsible for managing budgets and 

costs for those services where the transition has now completed and 
the sharing arrangements have ended. 

 
 
9.0 Legal Implications 
 
9.1 As the sharing arrangements for these services have now ended, the 

following legal documents govern the procedures for finalising the 
disaggregation of service: 

 

• The Service Agreements for these services; 

• The secondment arrangements for these services. 
 
9.2 The Administrative Agreement sets out the overall arrangements in 

relation to the manner in which the Authorities will work together. 
 
9.3 These documents and legal advice indicate that confirmation of the 

cessation of sharing arrangements by the Joint Committee is sufficient 
to legally end a shared service. 

 
 
10.0 Risk Management  
 
10.1 There is a risk that the services provided by each Council separately 

do not deliver the required respective operational and financial 
outcomes. This will be monitored by the each Council separately. 

 
 
11.0 Background and Options 
 
11.1 Legal arrangements, business plans and service delivery statements 

have been developed for all shared services and presented to Joint 
Officer Board and Joint Committee. 

 
11.2 The Business Plan supplements the Service Agreement.  It provides 

details of the Shared Service operation, plans and investment for the 
next three years. However, the requirements beyond the first year of 
operation are subject to change as the local authorities further develop 
their need and objectives. As such, this business plan is subject to 
yearly review and amendment as appropriate. 
 

Page 7



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

11.3  The Service Delivery Statement sets out the measures by which the 
shared service performance will be assessed, including performance 
indicators and benchmarks. 

 
11.4 All services are now working in accordance to these agreements and 

plans, delivering services to both Councils under the guidance of the 
Joint Officer Board and Joint Committee. 

   
 
12.0 Disaggregating Services 
 
12.1 Two shared services have now completed the disaggregation to 

separate services provided by each Council in accordance with the 
scheduled end for the sharing arrangements.  These services are: 
 

• Inclusion & Education;  

• Early Years Reform Programme. 
 
12.2 Reports have been provided to the Joint Officer Board evidencing the 

completion of these transitions to ensure that both Councils have 
effectively taken over the work provided by these services: 

 

• For Inclusion & Education, both Councils have set up separate 
services, with appropriate staffing levels, taken over all statutory 
duties and split budgets, including grant and capital funding; 

• For the Early Years Reform Programme, lead officers from both 
Councils have accepted the funding formula proposals delivered by 
the shared service and are progressing consultation with members 
from each Council separately to progress any specific 
implementation work. 

 
12.3 The costs associated with each service have been calculated and the 

appropriate recharges made between the Councils. 
 
12.4 The Schools Admission shared service was due to disaggregate in 

September 2009.  Officers in both Councils have agreed that this 
should be extended while processes and staff are disaggregated and 
ICT issues are resolved. 

 
 
13.0 Clarification of Previous Comments 
 
13.1 At the previous Joint Committee, questions and points of clarification 

were requested for the Business Plans and Service Delivery Statement 
documents for the following shared services: 

 

• ICT 

• Farms Estate 

• Highways Maintenance Contract 

• Archaeology 

Page 8



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

• Commissioned Community Equipment 
 

13.2 For the ICT service, the following table contains clarification and 
responses to the points raised. 

 

Comment Response 

As a trading organisation, 
should the ICT shared 
service have the ability to 
retain IPR? 

As the ICT shared service is not a separate legal 
entity it cannot hold IPR itself.   
Instead, in the case where the IPR is specific to 
the shared service, or for jointly commissioned 
projects, this is jointly owned by CE and CWAC 
and formally agreed when the work is 
commissioned.  Where work is specific to CE or 
CWAC, the commissioning authority retains IPR. 

The CWAC and CE-
specific work related to 
ICT needs to be subject to 
confidentiality agreements 

At present, the work programmes of CE and 
CWAC are not confidential, though specific 
benefits and issues not relevant to the shared 
service are kept by the retained, strategic ICT 
teams. 
The work programmes are shared to encourage 
collaborative working in order to share, and 
thereby reduce, costs to both CE and CWAC. 

The authorisation process 
is not clear – neither 
authority must seek 
approval from the other for 
commissioned work 

The process documented is a summary of more 
detailed documentation outlining the 
commissioning process. 
Generally, where work is specific to either CE or 
CWAC, authorisation is not required from the 
other Council.  However, in instances where the 
changes will impact on the other Council, e.g. 
changes to a shared system such as Oracle 
IBS, an impact assessment is done and then the 
proposed change ratified by the ICT Service 
Group which comprises both CE and CWAC 

The capital and revenue 
expenditure in the finance 
section is unclear 

The revenue described in the finance section is 
the budgets as provided by CE and CWAC.  
These have been calculated independently and 
have different assumptions, e.g. CE did not 
assume any income, but CWAC did and 
increased the staffing budget in line with the 
projected income. 
The capital section describes the capital 
programmes of both CE and CWAC as known at 
the time of writing and shows the contribution of 
each Council separately. 
The revenue and capital sections do not tally as 
the budgets developed by both CE and CWAC 
did not include capital other than the small 
amount included by CWAC as income. 

 

Page 9



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

13.3 For the Farms Estate service, the following table contains clarification 
and responses to the points raised. 

 

Comment Response 

What happens if CWAC 
sell off their Farms, i.e. 
how are the costs 
handled? 

The current business plan states that costs will 
be charged to CE and CWAC according to the 
volume of farms managed. 
This business plan is provisional, based on the 
current asset management strategy which is 
currently agreed, though is now being reviewed 
by CWAC.  Should this change, the sharing 
arrangements will need to be revisited to ensure 
a fair arrangement for both Councils. 

 
13.4 For the Highways Maintenance Contract service, the following table 

contains clarification and responses to the points raised. 
 

Comment Response 

What is the expiration date 
of the contract and has 
this been extended? 

The contract was scheduled to run until 2011.  
An extension was offered and accepted by 
Nuttalls, though after LGR. 
Current legal advice indicates that the contract is 
still only in effect until March 2011.  However, 
both CE and CWAC officers are currently 
investigating the possibility of extending this 
contract until 2012. 

 
13.5 For the Archaeology service, the following table contains clarification 

and responses to the points raised. 
 

Comment Response 

Who has the legal 
responsibility for the 
maintenance of the 
historic record? 

The Archaeological shared service maintains the 
historical record on behalf of both CE and 
CWAC.  
Legislation states that each Council is required 
to maintain, or have access to, a historical 
environment record. 
Any statutory duty remains with the Council for 
the area in which the duty arises, but they may 
chose to ask another Council to carry it out for 
them.  Should the duty not be performed then 
the owning Council is liable and would have to 
seek recompense from the Council who was 
undertaking it for them.   
The shared service agreements have an 
indemnity clause for this reason.  The shared 
service also provides an archaeological service 
for Halton and Warrington but that does not 
mean that CE or CWAC have taken on the stat 
duties of those authorities. 

Page 10



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

 
13.6 For the Commissioned Community Equipment service, the following 

table contains clarification and responses to the points raised. 
 

Comment Response 

What is provided by this 
service? 

This service provides a wide range of equipment 
to support adults and children with a physical 
disability to live an independent life as far as 
possible.  
This equipment includes specialist beds, 
mattresses, bath lifts, hoists, shower chairs and 
raised toilet seats. There are 25 items on the 
retail catalogue, plus larger items on the supplier 
catalogue.  
The retail catalogue provides for directly 
redeemed prescriptions with the retailer. The 
supplier catalogue is accessed via a prescription 
to Choicequip who then access the suppliers 
directly, for more complex larger items. The CES 
does not provide wheel chairs which is the 
responsibility of the NHS. 

Why was this delivery 
model chosen? 

In March 2007, the County Council initiated a 
process of re-tendering the community 
equipment service as a whole from April 2008, 
with options for social enterprise as well as 
community equipment contract delivery.  The 
Government in June 2007 allowed the 
commissioning body to consider a further 
alternative in establishing Cheshire as a lead 
pilot for a Retail Model. 
The rationale for Cheshire in adopting the retail 
model was founded on the basis that it 
represented a service more aligned to meeting 
the needs and expectations of service users, as 
identified under research carried out during 
2005/06.  
Through the retail model for Cheshire: 

• Service users would have better access, with 
retail stores more locally based 

• Retail stores would provide a greater choice 
in the equipment they purchased 

• The retail offer would include access to a 
wide range of equipment 

• The retail concept reflected service user 
requirements, providing choice, service and 
access.  

The model also more closely aligns with the 
agenda on personalisation. 

Is transition to the 
voluntary sector being 

Before a decision is made on the future of the 
shared service, an options appraisal needs to be 

Page 11



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

Comment Response 

considered when the 
service is due to cease the 
sharing arrangements? 

conducted.  
Broadly there are 3 main options, split the 
service east and west, retain the service on a 
more permanent partnership basis, expand the 
service to include other local authority partners. 
Consideration would be given to the possibility 
of the third sector, as part of this appraisal, 
running the service. Whatever the outcome, 
partners would need to ensure that appropriate 
financial controls are in place with proper levels 
of accountability in an agreed governance 
framework. 

Is the equipment provided 
by the service reused? 

Large items of equipment are recycled - beds, 
mattresses, hoists, bath lifts children's 
equipment on an agreed basis with the 
suppliers. It is often not cost effective to recycle 
smaller items such as raised toilet seats. 
Equipment which is recycled has to be collected, 
decontaminated, refurbished (if necessary), 
stored and then delivered to the next customer. 

 
 
14.0 Access to Information 
 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writers: 
 Officer: Lisa Quinn, Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets – Cheshire East 
Council / Julie Gill, Director of Resources – Cheshire West & Chester Council  
Tel No: 01270 686628 / 01244 977830 
Email: lisa.quinn@cheshireeast.gov.uk / 

Julie.gill@cheshirewestandchester.gov.uk   
 
Background Documents: 
 
Documents are available for inspection at:                           
 
Cheshire East Cabinet Report – Shared Services – 7th October 2008 
Cheshire West and Chester Executive Report – Joint Liaison Committee 
Recommendations: Caretaker and Nominated Councils; Shared Services: 
Service Delivery Option; Shared Back Office Services – 15th October 2009 
Cheshire East Cabinet Report – Shared Services – 3rd March 2009 
Cheshire West and Chester Executive Report – Shared Services – 18th March 
2009 
Cheshire East Cabinet Report – Shared Services – 23rd March 2009 
Cheshire Shared Services Joint Committee Report –10th June 2009 
Cheshire Shared Services Joint Committee Report – 17th July 2009 
Cheshire Shared Services Joint Committee Report – 30th September 2009 
 
Documents are available for inspection at: 

Page 12



Joint Committee 26
th
 October 2009 

 
Cheshire East Democratic Services 
Westfields 
Middlewich Road 
Sandbach 
CW11 1HZ 

 
  

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7Page 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous meeting
	4 (A) Transition Shared Services - Update, and, (2) ICT Business Plan Clarification
	7 Shared Services Staff Reductions
	Shared service appendix


